# **Yolo County Health Council**

June 8, 2017 Minutes

MICHAEL WILKES, MD, CHAIR ELIZABETH MUNGUIA, VICE-CHAIR

### YOLO COUNTY HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY

GONZALEZ BUILDING, COMMUNITY ROOM 25 NORTH COTTONWOOD STREET, WOODLAND, CA 95695 The Yolo County Health Council met on the 8<sup>th</sup> Day of June 2017 in the Community room at the Gonzalez Building at 25 North Cottonwood Street, Woodland, CA at 9:00 a.m.

VOTING MEMBERS PRESENT: Elizabeth Munguia, District 1; Linda Deos; District 4; Deborah Ward, At-Large Member; John Tan, At-Large Member;

Dawn Myers Purkey, Commission on Aging & Adult Services; Lauren Adams, First 5 Yolo; Kathleen Middings, MCAH Advisory Board; Jeneba Lahai, Yolo County Children's Alliance; James Glica-Hernandez, Local Mental Health Board; Anna Darzins, Elica Health Centers;

Bambi Eagle, Northern Valley Indian Health; Allan Yamashiro, Sutter Health; Stacey McCall, Winters Health Care;

Kim Deese, Woodland Health Care

VOTING MEMBERS ABSENT: Michael Wilkes, District 2; Carri Ziegler, District 3; Valerie Olson, District 5; James Zuniga, At-Large Member;

Scott Hatcher, EMCC; Alicia Kelly, CommuniCare Health Center;

STAFF & GUESTS PRESENT: Ron Chapman, Health Officer, HHSA; Ashley Logins-Miller, Secretary, HHSA; Mindi Nunes, CAO Representative;

Miriam Odurukwe, HHSA; Tara Thronson, Deputy to Supervisor Saylor; Emily Vaden, HHSA Community Health Branch;

### 9:00 A.M. CALL TO ORDER

1. **WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS** – *Elizabeth Munguia, Vice-Chair* 

The June 8, 2017 Health County meeting was called to order at 9:00 a.m., at which time around the table introductions occurred and quorum was confirmed.

2. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF AGENDA – Elizabeth Munguia, Vice-Chair

Motion: James Glica-Hernandez Second: Linda Deos Discussion: None Vote: Unanimous

3. APPROVE THE MAY 11, 2017 MINUTES – Elizabeth Munguia, Vice-Chair

Motion: Allan Yamashiro Second: Jeneba Lahai Discussion: None Vote: Unanimous

### 4. PUBLIC COMMENT

- Linda Deos has been approached by researcher due to West Sacramento being identified as an area of concern for colon cancers. Linda is following up for more information and was asked to let Health Council and Ron Chapman know the outcome.
- Linda Deos was also approached by several individuals regarding the lack of 24 hour pharmacy within the County. It was decided that Ron Chapman will look into the availability of emergency department pharmacies.

### 5. STATE AND COUNTY UPDATE - Mindi Nunes

- **Budget:** On June 13<sup>th</sup> the County will be considering the recommended budget for FY17-18, of which HHSA is the majority. This consideration is in anticipation of the State budget, which is typically approved later in the year. The Budget will be adopted in September.
  - O IHSS: Part of the state budget that affects HHSA is the IHSS maintenance of effort (MOE) cost shift to Counties. There is a deal on the table with the Governor to postpone the major impact to counties for 3-5 year. In FY17-18 the cost shift would increase from a 3.5% to 5%, which is about \$100K increase for Yolo County. Over the next five years, that would continue to increase to be a full cost share with the state. The impact of that is still being analyzed; it would be several million dollars for Yolo County. Solutions are being reviewed by State agencies such as CWDA, and CSAC, as the current solution is not sustainable for Counties. Due to these changes, mid-year growth realignment funds will not be coming to the Counties. Although those are not typically budgeted, they are relied on to cover any excess cost during the year.

- **Housing:** Now that the old hospital has been demolished, construction starting on 80 unit multi-family housing which is being funded by MHSA funds. Funding is in place and everything is ready to go. Groundbreaking on June 27 at 9:00am. This project has been in the work for over seven years.
- **Davis Service Center:** Progress is being made on a Service Center at 600 A Street, Davis. Initial plans are laid out and will be entering design this summer. Reconstruction should be completed by next year.

### 6. BOARD OF SUPERVISORS UPDATE - Tara Thronson

- In May, the Board of Supervisors adopted a resolution reaffirming support of the Affordable Care Act in response to hearing from community partners. Over 24 thousand residents were enrolled in Medi-Cal due to the expansion, with another six thousand being covered by Covered California. Prior to the Affordable Care Act, indigent health coverage was a challenge to the Yolo County budget. In addition, many residents who needed coverage were not reached. In addition to the impact to the residents for their health coverage, many jobs would be lost in Yolo County if ACA were repealed.
- 7. COMMUNITY HEALTH BRANCH REPORT Ron Chapman, MD, MPH Health Officer HANDOUT

June Community Health Branch Report

- Due to the request of several Health Council members who were unable to attend today, the Housing presentation was postponed.
- Ron Chapman will be the interim Branch Director for Community Health. The County is actively recruiting for a replacement Branch Director and has already received about a dozen applications.
- 8. **HEALTH OFFICER REPORT** Ron Chapman, MD, MPH, Health Officer
  - West Nile Virus & Zika: We are entering West Nile Virus season and the State has already announced the first human case, which was in Kings County. Although prediction each season is challenging, wet winters tend to translate into more mosquitos. In addition to tracking West Nile, Zika is also being tracked. At this point, there continues to be no transmission in California; however the species of mosquito that can carry the virus is in California although it is not currently carrying the virus. In order for it to carry the virus, it would need to bite someone who has traveled and become infected with Zika. Zika continues to be a huge concern for newborns and work is being done with providers to identify pregnant women for testing. There have already been some challenging birth outcomes in other Counties due to Zika.
  - Public Health Accreditation: The Public Health Accreditation Site Visit is scheduled for September 11<sup>th</sup> and 12<sup>th</sup>. It is a very structured site visit that will include meetings with leadership, staff, and community partners. Supervisor Saylor will be representing the governing entity, with Jill Cook representing the Administrator's office. After the site visit, a committee reviews the report submitted by the site visitors and makes a decision. This committee only meets quarterly, so we are expecting to have a decision by early 2018.

### **PRESENTATIONS**

9. NOROVIRUS OUTBREAK — Ron Chapman, MD, MPH Health Officer HANDOUT

PowerPoint: Norovirus Outbreak

- Significant partnering with school nurses, school administrators, principals, and the Office of Education
  occurred. Four schools in the County were closed and of those, two had no new cases of Norovirus after
  they reopened.
- The CD team learned last week that this was a novel strain of Norovirus that had never been seen by humans before. CDPH and the CDC want to publish a report on Yolo County's efforts.

• The CD team will be working closely with summer schools and camps but are hopeful that with school ending, transmission will be eradicated.

# **10.** ORAL HEALTH STRATEGIC PLAN — Ron Chapman, MD, MPH Health Officer HANDOUT

PowerPoint: Oral Health Strategic Plan

- Many years ago, Health council was very interested in oral health, specifically community water fluoridation. At that time, a subcommittee was formed and attempted to get water fluoridation approved in Davis. After a very difficult battle, the effort was unsuccessful. However, some of subcommittee continued to meet around oral health issues. In more recent years, HHSA had some money to put towards oral health, which initially went toward staffing. When that didn't work out, it was decided to put the remaining funds towards hiring a consultant to help develop an oral health strategic plan.
- Being led by the consultant, the now Oral Health Steering Committee developed priorities and drafted a strategic plan.
- With the passing of Prop 56, there will be funds allocated to local health departments for oral health.
- The Oral Health Steering Committee will continue to meet and develop strategies to address the identified priority areas.

### **ANNOUNCEMENTS**

### 11. REPRESENTATIVE REPORT OUT & ANNOUNCEMENTS

- **Lauren Adams:** First 5 Yolo has launched a <u>new website</u>, which includes information for parents, providers and is now mobile friendly.
- **Jeneba Lehai:** A low income housing unit opened in West Sacramento on the 19<sup>th</sup>. The first phase included 77 units, which are now full with the majority of families Syrian and Afgan refugees. Yolo County Children's Alliance was contracted to provide social services, and the model is to have that support onsite.
- James Glica-Hernandez: Local Mental Health Board will be holding a public forum on Monday, June 26<sup>th</sup> at the Bauer Building at 6:00 pm.
- **Emily Vaden**: Introduced Miriam, a MPH student from UC Davis who has been interning with HHSA. Miriam has been performing assessments to gather data on children's default beverages at restaurants, as well as helping with the CHIP dashboard.
- **Elizabeth Munguia for the Sharps disposal subcommittee**: The Sharps Disposal subcommittee is still gathering data but has found out:
  - West Sacramento Fire Department is the sole sharps disposal location in West Sacramento and pays about \$10,000 a year to dispose of sharps.
  - Woodland contracts out to a private company from Yuba City to pick up sharps every 12 weeks. The Woodland Police Department has identified the need for a process to properly dispose of sharps found on an arrestee.
  - After speaking with the Winters Fire Department, Parks and Rec, and the local pharmacy, there does not appear to be a sharps disposal location in Winters. Community members are informed to take sharps to the landfill, which means they are likely being thrown in the trash. However, Winters Health Care does accept sharps disposal for current patients.
  - o WS parks & rec each truck as a sharps disposal container that they take to FD when full.

# **ADJOURNMENT**

# 12. Next Meeting: July 13, 2017

**Proposed Topics:** 

• Adolescent Health

# **Proposed items for future meetings**

•

The meeting was adjourned at 10:39 a.m.

Respectfully submitted by:

Ashley Logins-Miller, Secretary Yolo County Health Council